

Doc 9859
AN/474



Safety Management Manual (SMM)

Approved by the Secretary General
and published under his authority

Fourth~~Third~~ Edition — 201**3**~~7~~

International Civil Aviation Organization

Published in separate English, Arabic, Chinese, French, Russian
and Spanish editions by the
INTERNATIONAL CIVIL AVIATION ORGANIZATION
999 University-Robert Bourassa Street, Montréal, Quebec, Canada H3C 5H7

For ordering information and for a complete listing of sales agents
and booksellers, please go to the ICAO website at www.icao.int.

First edition 2006
Second edition 2009
Third edition 2013
Fourth edition 2017

Doc 9859, Safety Management Manual (SMM)

Order Number: 9859
ISBN 978-92-9249-214-4

© ICAO 2013³⁷

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a
retrieval system or transmitted in any form or by any means, without prior
permission in writing from the International Civil Aviation Organization.

AMENDMENTS

Amendments are announced in the supplements to the *Catalogue of ICAO Publications*; the Catalogue and its supplements are available on the ICAO website at www.icao.int. The space below is provided to keep a record of such amendments.

RECORD OF AMENDMENTS AND CORRIGENDA

[illegible][illegible]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	<i>Page</i>	
Glossary	(ix)	
Acronyms and abbreviations	(ix)	
Definitions	(xii)	
 Chapter 1. Overview of the Manual.....	 1-1	
1.1 General.....	1-1	
1.2 Objective	1-1	
1.3 Structure.....	1-2	
 Chapter 2. Safety Management Fundamentals.....	 2-1	
2.1 The concept of safety	2-1	
2.2 The evolution of safety	2-1	
2.3 Accident causation.....	2-2	
2.4 People, context and safety.....	2-6	
2.5 Errors and violations.....	2-8	
2.6 Safety culture	2-10	Comment [A1]: Separate Chapter 3.
2.7 The management dilemma	2-13	
2.8 Change management.....	2-14	Comment [A2]: Include under newChapter 6
2.9 Integration of management systems	2-15	Comment [A3]: Include under SSP and SMS Implementation 8.6.3 and 9.4.3, respectively
2.10 Safety reporting and investigation	2-16	
2.11 Safety data collection and analysis	2-18	Comment [A4]: Include under new Chapter 4.
2.12 Safety indicators and performance monitoring	2-23	Comment [A5]: Include under new Chapter 10
2.13 Hazards	2-23	
2.14 Safety risk.....	2-26	
2.15 Safety risk management.....	2-30	Comment [A6]: consider ways to condense to save at least 3 lines....
2.16 Prescriptive and performance-based requirements.....	2-32	Comment [A7]: Include under new Chapter 6.
Appendix 1 to Chapter 2. Organization Safety Culture (OSC)/Organization Risk Profile (ORP) Assessment Checklist — Air Operators.....	2-App 1-1	Comment [A8]: Include in Website
Appendix 2 to Chapter 2. Example of a Safety Risk Mitigation Worksheet	2-App 2-1	Comment [A9]: Include in Website
Appendix 3 to Chapter 2. Illustration of a Hazard Prioritization Procedure.....	2-App 3-1	Comment [A10]: Include in Website
 Chapter 3. ICAO Safety Management SARPSSafety Culture	 3-1	Comment [A11]: New Chapter 3 on Safety Culture
3.1 Introduction	3-1	Comment [A12]: Cover in Chapter 1
3.2 State safety management requirements	3-1	Comment [A13]: Include under Chapter 8

Page

3.3	Service providers' safety management requirements	3-2
3.4	New Annex 19 — Safety Management	3-4
Chapter 4.	Protection of Safety Data, Safety Information and Related Sources	4-1
Chapter 5.	Safety Data and Safety Information Collection, Analysis, Sharing and Exchange	5-1
5.1	Safety Data and Safety Information Collection	
5.2	Safety Data and Safety Information Analysis	
5.3	Safety Information Sharing and Exchange	
Chapter 6.	Risk-based Approaches to Managing Safety	
6.1	Introduction	
6.2	Benefits of safety management	
6.3	Existing and emerging aviation activities	
6.4	Change management	
6.5	Performance-based regulations	
Chapter 7.	Scalability	
Chapter 8.	State Safety Programme (SSP) Management Responsibilities	48-1
8.1	Introduction	48-1
8.1.1	State safety management requirements	
8.1.2	State safety Responsibility and responsibilities	
8.1.3	Delegation of safety management functions and activities	
8.1.4	The foundation of the SSP – State safety oversight critical elements (CEs)	
8.1.5	Pre-requisites for a sustainable SSP	
8.2	SSP framework State safety policy, objectives and resources	48-12
8.2.1	Primary aviation legislation SSP Component 1. — State safety policy and objectives	4-2
8.2.2	Specific operating regulations	
SSP 8.2.3	State system and functions	
Element 1.1	State safety legislative framework	4-2
SSP Element 1.2	State safety responsibilities and accountabilities	4-3
SSP Element 1.3	Accident and incident investigation	4-4
SSP Element 1.4	Enforcement policy	4-4
8.2.4	Qualified technical personnel	4-4
8.2.5	Technical guidance, tools and the provision of safety-critical information	
8.3	SSP Component 2. — State safety risk management	4-5
8.3.1	Licensing, certification, authorization and approval obligations	SSP
Element 2.1	Safety requirements for the service provider's SMS	4-5
8.3.2	Safety management system obligations	
8.3.3	Accident and incident investigation	
8.3.4	Hazard identification and safety risk assessment	
8.3.5	Management of safety risks	
SSP Element 2.2	Agreement on the service provider's safety performance	4-5
8.4	SSP Component 3. —	State safety
assurance	4-6	
8.4.1	Surveillance obligations	
8.4.2	State safety performance	
SSP Element 3.1	Safety oversight	4-6
SSP Element 3.2	Safety data collection, analysis and exchange	4-7

Comment [A14]: Include under Chapter 9

Comment [A15]: Cover Historical in Chapter 1

Comment [A16]: To be provided by SIP IG to support upgraded provisions in amendment 1

Comment [A17]: New Chapter 5

SSP Element 3.3—Safety data-driven targeting of oversight of areas of greater concern or need	4-8	
8.5 SSP Component 4—State safety promotion	4-9	
8.5.1 SSP Element 4.1—Internal training, communication and dissemination of safety information	4-9	
8.5.2 SSP Element 4.2—External training, communication and dissemination of safety information	4-10	Comment [A18]: Restructured based on Amendment 1 to Annex 19
4.38.6 SSP implementation planning	4-10	
8.6.14.3.1 General Regulatory system description	4-10	
8.6.2 SSP Scalability		
8.6.3 Integration of management systems		
4.3.2 Regulatory system description	4-11	
4.3.38.6.4 Gap analysis	4-11	
4.3.48.6.5 SSP implementation plan	4-11	
4.3.5 Safety indicators	4-11	Comment [A19]: Move to Section 10.1
4.4 8.6.6 SSP implementation — Phased approach		
8.7 SSP maturity assessment	4-13	
Phase 1	4-14	
Phase 2	4-17	
Phase 3	4-18	
Phase 4	4-19	Comment [A20]: Brief treatment
Appendix 1 to Chapter 4—Guidance on the development of a State safety policy statement	4-App 1-1	Comment [A21]: Move to Section 8.2.3
Appendix 2 to Chapter 4—Guidance on a State's voluntary and confidential reporting system	4-App 2-1	Comment [A22]: Move to Section 5.1
Appendix 3 to Chapter 4—Example of a State's mandatory reporting procedure	4-App 3-1	Comment [A23]: Move to website
Appendix 4 to Chapter 4—SSP safety performance indicators	4-App 4-1	Comment [A24]: Move to Section 10.1
Appendix 5 to Chapter 4—Safety information protection	4-App 5-1	Comment [A25]: Move to Chapter 4
Appendix 6 to Chapter 4—Guidance on accident and incident notification and reporting	4-App 6-1	Comment [A26]: Move to Section 5.1
Appendix 7 to Chapter 4—SSP gap analysis checklist and implementation plan	4-App 7-1	Comment [A27]: Move to website
Appendix 8 to Chapter 4—Sample contents of an SSP document	4-App 8-1	Comment [A28]: Move to website
Appendix 9 to Chapter 4—Example of a State SMS Regulation	4-App 9-1	Comment [A29]: Move to website
Appendix 10 to Chapter 4—Sample State enforcement policy	4-App 10-1	Comment [A30]: Move to website
Appendix 11 to Chapter 4—Guidance on State enforcement procedures in an SSP-SMS environment	4-App 11-1	Comment [A31]: Consider content for Chapter 4.
Appendix 12 to Chapter 4—Example of an SMS regulatory acceptance/assessment checklist	4-App 12-1	Comment [A32]: Move to website
Chapter 59. Safety Management System (SMS)	59-1	
59.1 Introduction	59-1	

59.2	Scope	59-42
9.2.1	Service providers' safety management requirements	
9.2.2	Common acceptance of SMS	
9.2.3	SMS for service providers	
9.2.4	SMS for international general aviation	
9.2.5	Interface management	
59.3	SMS framework	9-35-2
9.3.1	SMS Component 1. Safety policy and objectives	5-3
SMS Element 1.1	Management commitment and responsibility	5-3
SMS Element 1.2	Safety accountabilities	5-7
SMS Element 1.3	Appointment of key safety personnel	5-9
SMS Element 1.4	Coordination of emergency response planning	5-12
SMS Element 1.5	SMS documentation	5-12
9.3.2	SMS Component 2. Safety risk management	5-14
SMS Element 2.1	Hazard identification	5-14
SMS Element 2.2	Safety risk assessment and mitigation	5-18
9.3.3	SMS Component 3. Safety assurance	5-21
SMS Element 3.1	Safety performance monitoring and measurement	5-22
SMS Element 3.2	The management of change	5-23
SMS Element 3.3	Continuous improvement of the SMS	5-24
9.3.4	SMS Component 4. Safety promotion	5-25
SMS Element 4.1	Training and education	5-25
SMS Element 4.2	Safety communication	5-27
59.4	SMS implementation planning	59-274
59.4.1	System description	5-27
9.4.2	SMS Scalability	
59.4.23	Integration of management systems	5-28
59.4.34	Gap analysis	5-29
59.4.45	SMS implementation plan	5-30
5.4.5	Safety performance indicators	5-30
59.4.56	Phased
implementation approach		5-31
5.5.1	General	5-31
5.5.2	Phase 1	5-32
5.5.3	Phase 2	5-34
5.5.4	Phase 3	5-36
5.5.5	Phase 4	5-38
5.5.6	SMS elements progressively implemented throughout Phases 1 to 4	5-39
Appendix 1 to Chapter 5.	Electronic signatures	5-App 1-1
Appendix 2 to Chapter 5.	Sample job description for a safety manager	5-App 2-1
Appendix 3 to Chapter 5.	Emergency response planning	5-App 3-1
Appendix 4 to Chapter 5.	Guidance on the development of an SMS manual	5-App 4-1
Appendix 5 to Chapter 5.	Voluntary and confidential reporting systems	5-App 5-1
Appendix 6 to Chapter 5.	SMS safety performance indicators	5-App 6-1

Comment [A33]: Include only level of components in the TOC, while retaining content in manual

Comment [A34]: Move to Section 10.1

Comment [A35]: Brief treatment

Comment [A36]: Remove, doesn't really pertain to safety management really.

Comment [A37]: Move to website

Comment [A38]: Not sure where to put this - discuss with SMP Leadership

Comment [A39]: Move to Section 9.3 under SMS framework 1.5

Comment [A40]: Move to Section 5.1

Comment [A41]: Move to Section 10.1

Appendix 7 to Chapter 5. SMS gap analysis checklist and implementation plan	5-App 7-1
---	-----------

Comment [A42]: Move to website

Attachment. Related ICAO guidance material	Att-1
--	-------

Comment [A43]: Consider including under Chapter 1, Structure - to improve visibility